
CITY OF SEA ISLE CITY, NEW JERSEY 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2014 – 10:00 AM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

SEA ISLE CITY PUBLIC SCHOOL 

 

ATTENDANCE:  Mr. Edwardi, Mr. Gibson, Mr. Kehner, Ms. Tighe and Mr. Divney.  Also attending was 

Mayor Desiderio, Administrator Mr. Savastano, CFO Ms. Doll and Solicitor Mr. Baldini.  

 

Mr. Divney called the meeting to order and asked everyone to rise for the flag salute and prayer.  He then 

announced the meeting had been advertised in accordance with P. L. 1975, Chapter 231.   

 

Mr. Divney then asked for a motion to adopt the minutes of the 9-23-14 Regular Meeting.  Motion moved by 

Mr. Edwardi and seconded by Mr. Kehner.  All ayes followed. 

 

REPORTS-Mayor and Administrator:  Mayor Desiderio announced that the State opened bids for the 

upcoming beach fill project and the contract will be awarded to Great Lakes of Illinois.   

 

CFO, Paula Doll addressed Resolution No. 155.  She explained that the State mandated Best Practices Inventory 

had been filed.  She went on to explain that of the 50 questions, Sea Isle responded affirmatively to 44; 

compared to 43 in 2013.  She then provided an overview of the “no” responses.  

 

Mr. Baldini presented a request from the widow of Police Officer Michael Cullinane.  She forfeited the State 

pension when she remarried; however she recently divorced and is seeking to reinstate the benefit and has asked 

the City of Sea Isle City to pass a resolution indicating it does not oppose the reinstatement of the pension. 

 

REPORTS-Council:  There were no Council reports. 

 

ORDINANCES ~ Second Reading Public Hearing: Mr. Divney asked for a motion to take up Ordinance No. 

1572 for Second Reading and Public Hearing.  Motion moved by Ms. Tighe and seconded by Mr. Edwardi.  All 

ayes followed and the clerk read the ordinance by title:  1572- An Ordinance Authorizing the Use of Capital 

Surplus for the Purchase of Various Items.  Mr. Savastano said this will allow for the purchase of a bucket 

truck in the amount of $120,000. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  There was no public comment on Ordinance No. 1572. 

 

Mr. Divney asked for a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1572 on second reading.  Motion moved by Mr. Gibson 

and seconded by Ms. Tighe.  All ayes followed.   

 

CITIZEN COMMENT~ Resolutions on Consent Agenda:   

John Fee-220 43rd St:  Asked about #161 & #162 and Mr. Savastano explained that they were change orders 

for the Central Avenue project.  Mr. Gibson added that the funds are a USDA grant/loan.  

 

RESOLUTION – Consent Agenda: 

 154 – Authorizing Approval of Vouchers  

 155 – Certifying the Governing Body Reviewed the 2014/2015 Best Practice Inventory 

 156 – Authorizing Advertisement of Bids: Aerial Bucket Truck & Security Equipment and                 

           Technology for New City Hall 

  157 – Authorizing Person-to-Person Transfer of Plenary Retail Consumption License From Busch’s             

  Inc. to MGR Liquors, LLC 

 158 – Authorizing Award of Contract for Roadway Reconstruction – Various Streets  

           (A.E. Stone,Inc.- $259,000.00) 

 159 – Authorizing Refund of Unused Escrow Monies 

 160 – Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Amendment to the Contract between the City of Sea Isle            

  City and the Middle Management Professional Employee’s Association (amendment to salary            

  range for Assistant Superintendent with W&S Operation License and CPWM Certification)  

 161 – Authorizing Change Order No. 2 to LCI for Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer Improvements            

  Project- ($75,198.14) 

 162 – Authorizing Change Order No. 2 to BCM Engineers Central Avenue Sanitary Sewer                                 

  Improvements Project Engineering Services- ($62,224.40) 

 163 - Authorizing Change Order No. 1 to Landberg Construction, Inc. for Well House No. 9 Site                

  Improvements SIC074 Contract 1 (-$5,425.00 to a new overall amount of $49,457.19) 

 164 - Resolution Affirming the Mayors Action of Executing a Deed Dedicating a Perpetual Storm           

  Damage Reduction Easement Required for the Great Egg Harbor Inlet to Townsends Inlet, New           

  Jersey Project, Providing Easement for City Properties 

 165 – Authorizing the City of Sea Isle City to Extend the Stipend Program for Volunteers of the Sea  

  Isle City Ambulance Corp. Who Meet Certain Minimum Standards of Participation as Set  

  Forth in Resolution No. 108 (2014) and Resolution No. 120 (2014).  

 

 



  

Mr. Divney then asked for a motion to approve Resolutions #154 to #165.  Motion moved by Mr. Kehner and 

seconded by Ms. Tighe.  All ayes followed. 

 

PENDING BUSINESS:  Mr. Divney asked if any decision had been made on the request to allow overnight 

parking at the Library and Mr. Savastano said that the Police and Administration does not support it due to 

control and insuring vehicles are gone before the Library opens.  Ms. Tighe suggested consideration be given to 

allow overnight parking on the space along Central Avenue with the City issued permit. 

 

NEW BUSINESS:   Mr. Divney said there will be an amendment to the jitney ordinance at the next meeting.  

Mr. Baldini added that it will create a small group, limiting the number to 30 and increase the fee to $150.00 to 

be consistent with all other mercantile licenses. Ms. Tighe suggested the jitneys run in the morning as well and 

during all festivals. 

 

Mr. Divney then said that the five year Capital Plan discussion will begin at the 10/28/14 workshop at 1:00 pm.  

In advance of the discussions, he wanted to begin the dialog regarding the use of the school facility after the 

new City Hall is completed. 

 

Ms. Tighe said that the City has spent alot of Capital dollars over the last few years and she feels it is time to 

slow down.  She said she supports the school being retained for recreation with upgrades to the gym such as air 

conditioning, new floor and lighting.  The trailers currently being used by the Police should be removed and the 

remaining area for parking, green space and possibly a playground.  

 

Mr. Kehner agreed but there should be an engineering report done with recommendations and possible grant 

monies as sometimes it is difficult to retrofit existing buildings for other uses.   

 

Mr. Gibson said he would like to have the public input first and Mr. Edwardi agreed but also agrees with Ms. 

Tighe that it should be for recreation.   

 

The next item to discuss was restrooms on the beach.  Ms. Tighe said that previous discussions identified two 

area where nice portable restrooms could be located, however with the new beach replenishment project 

perhaps permanent structures should be planned for.  

 

Mr. Edwardi suggested there is a need in the south end and there should be room to place nice portable 

restrooms at the street ends at 75
th

 & 85
th

.  Mr. Gibson agreed there may be a need, but these are residential 

areas and they may not be tolerated.  Mr. Divney said the dialogue should continue and asked the 

Administration to get costs for discussion at the capital plan workshop. 

 

Mr. Divney then addressed a letter received from the Chamber of Commerce asking the City to consider 

beginning the review and re-examination of the master plan and to revisit the continuing need for the C-2 mixed 

use zone. 

 

Mr. Kehner said that the Master Plan re-exam does not have to be done until 2017; however, there have been 

many changes and he would support the request to begin now.  Mr. Divney said it would be a Planning Board 

task and it should make the decision. 

 

Mr. Edwardi complained about the lines on the Boulevard being difficult to see and the potholes are also a 

problem.  Mayor Desiderio said he would be addressing it at the Freeholder meeting later. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENT: 

Andy Ferrilli-344 38
th

 St:  Supports recreation at the school, but agrees with Mr. Kehner that engineering must 

be done to address the bathrooms, air conditioning, bleachers in the gym etc., and it may be more cost effective 

to build new. 

Steve Hansbury-5712 Central Ave:  Supports recreation at the school.  He also supports more restrooms at the 

beach, specifically 57
th

 Street.  He then asked if Busch’s Restaurant and the Acme lot are being developed and 

Mr. Divney said that resolution 157 transfers the liquor license to another owner, but the Council is not involved 

in any development.  He then asked if there will be a debt service schedule at the Capital Plan Workshop and 

Mr. Divney said yes. 

John Henry 119-45
th

 St:  Agreed with Ms. Tighe regarding recreational use for the school.  He also supports 

additional restrooms and suggested more pavilions on the promenade.  He then asked if 50
th

 St from Landis to 

Central is going to be paved and Mr. Savastano yes, this year.  

Marlene McHale-225 43
rd

 St:  Supports recreation at the school and would like an indoor pool for year round 

use. 

Linda Layton-4445 Venitean Rd:  Agreed that the residents want an indoor pool and suggested fund raisers to 

offset the cost to build and maintain one along with user fees. 

Chris Glancy-209 Landis:  As President of the Chamber, he said that the membership all want the school 

facility to remain recreation, with an indoor pool understanding it may require a new building. 

Alan Nesgyensohn-125 79
th

 St:  Supports a pool and suggested reaching out to the YMCA to see if it is 

interested in running it and in addition to user fees, swim lessons could be source of income.  He also suggested 

the City coordinate artists to paint the electrical boxes on the streets. 



Debbie Anderson-208 46
th

 St:  Agrees with recreation at the school, a pool and would like a park with green 

space as well. 

Ann Organ-209 39
th

 St:  Asked if the new City Hall will have solar panels and Mr. Savastano said no.  She 

then said at the SICTA meeting the Mayor said the school would not be torn down.  Mayor Desiderio clarified 

that he said it was his opinion that it should not be demolished for residential development.  

Anthony Kutschera-142 45
th

 St:  Said the neighborhood does not want residential development, he supports 

recreation with a pool with membership and fees to offset costs. 

Lisa Iannone-146 52
nd

 St:  Agrees with recreation and a pool, but would also like to see an art center. 

Marianne Snyder-233 57
th

 St:  Said Margate has tents on the beach with portable restrooms inside operated 

with solar power. 

Sheila Ruhl-243 85
th

 St:  Agrees with a recreation facility and a pool, but there needs to be programs for adults 

as well. 

John Fee-220 43
rd

 St:  Said there was a Planning Board meeting tonight and asked if the Council will formally 

ask the Planning Board to do the Master Plan re-exam now and Mr. Divney said not at tonight’s meeting. 

Linda Layton-4445 Venicean Rd:  Suggested sending a questionnaire to every residence to seek support for 

the poll and recreation center. 

Brian Heritage-37
th

 & Landis Ave:  Said that it is clear the residents want a recreation facility and a pool now, 

not in five years. Mr. Divney said the City will get costs and tax impacts for discussion at the 10/28/14 

workshop. 

Fran Gomolson-131 46
th

 St:  Regarding the Master Plan, she asked if there is an effort to promote families and 

create affordable housing so that more families move back into the City and if that is the case, there may be a 

need for the school again. Mr. Divney said that everyone would love to have more families, but like everywhere 

it is economically driven, but it would be part of the housing element of the Master Plan.  

Jeri Musselman-234 85
th

 St:  Supports a recreation center with a pool. 

Dan Tumolo-7407 Pleasure Ave:  As President of the SIC School Board, he said there are 140 school age 

children currently, K-12, and there will most likely not be a future need for the school.  He said he agrees the 

school should be used for recreational purposes, but use the census to determine the demographics for its use. 

 

Mr. Edwardi said he supports the recreation facility with a pool.  The City has the space and when the school is 

vacated it is the time to build it.  He also suggested putting a question in the e-newsletter. 

 

Bill Topley-Ludlam Island Brewery:  Presented his business plan to open a state licensed brewery at 8305 

Landis Avenue.  He explained it will be a limited brew facility capable of making 8 kegs every 7 – 10 days 

using a home brew system to reduce noise and odors.   He went on to say that the brewery will offer tours, 

tastings and will sell merchandise such as t-shirts, glasses etc. 

 

Mr. Divney said he is coming to Council because he needs a waiver from the 1000 ft. requirement from a 

Church and other licensed premise.  He will also have to go before the Zoning Board to get use variance relief 

because it is considered a manufacturing use and it is not permitted in the zone. 

 

Ms. Tighe asked Mr. Baldini how it could be waived and he said that the State Statute allows the Governing 

Body to waive the proximity of a church or school, but since the local ordinance added licensed premise, he 

feels it cannot be waived and would require an ordinance amendment, reducing the distance. 

 

Mr. Edwardi said he was not prepared to amend the ordinance without hearing from the neighbors and Ms. 

Tighe suggested going to the Zoning Board first so that the residents within 200 ft. can be heard.  Mr. Divney 

suggested an ordinance amendment be prepared for introduction and then the neighbors can be heard during 

public comment.  Mr. Gibson said he was not in favor of amending the ordinance and Mr. Kehner and Mr. 

Edwardi said they would like to hear from the neighbors before an ordinance is introduced.  Ms. Tighe and Mr. 

Divney both suggested it was a positive business for Sea Isle and Ms. Tighe suggested putting the topic on 

pending business at a future meeting and put it in the e-newsletter.   

 

 

Mr. Divney asked for a motion to adjourn.  Motion moved by Ms. Tighe and seconded by Mr. Edwardi.  All 

ayes followed and the meeting adjourned at 11:59 a.m.  

 

 

 _______________________ 

Cindy L. Griffith, City Clerk 


